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P-ROCEEDI-NGS
4:00 p. m

CHAIR HOOD: Okay, we are going to go ahead and
get started. Good afternoon, |adies and gentleman we are
conveni ng a broadcast, broadcasting this public hearing by
vi deoconf er enci ng.

My nane i s Ant hony Hood. Joining us this evening
are Vice Chair MIller, Conmmssioner My, Conmm ssioner
Shapi ro, Conmm ssioner Turnbull. W're also joined by the
Ofice of Zoning Staff M. Sharon Schellin and M. Paul
Young, who will be working on all of our virtual operations.

We ask that all others introduce thensel ves at the
appropriate tine. Tonight we actually have two cases.

I'm trying to make this opening statenent

conducive to both, so I'll go so far. And for the
rul emaking, 1'Il read the rul enaking part and then we get to
the contested case | will cone back and read the part that

pertains to the contested case. So | would like for this
part to be incorporated into both cases.

Copi es of today's virtual public hearing notice
are available on the Ofice of Zoning's website.

Pl ease be advised that this proceeding is being
recorded by a court reporter and is al so webcast |ive, WbEx
and Youtube live. The video will be available on the Ofice

of Zoning's website after the hearing.
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5

Accordingly, all those listening on WebEx or by
phone will be nuted during the hearing. And those who have
signed up to participate or totestify wll be unnuted at the
appropriate tine.

Pl ease state your nanme and hone address before
providing oral testinony or your presentation. Wen you are
finished speaking, please nute your audio so that your
m crophone i s no | onger picking up sound or background noi se.

If you are experiencing any difficult accessing
WebEx or via telephone call in, then please call our Z
hotli ne nunmber at 202-727-5471. To sign up or to receive
WebEXx login or call in instructions.

Al'l persons planning to testify either in favor
or opposition, we encourage you to sign up in advance. W
real ly encourage you to sign up in advance and you wll be
cal l ed by nane.

If in the proceeding you wish to file witten
testinmony or additional supporting docunents during the
heari ng, then pl ease be prepared to describe the discussion
and discuss it at the tine of your testinony.

| will stop here because | believe that this is
going to, the rest of it is just going to be germane to the
rul emaking in the contested case.

You know, nobody calls ne all day |ong. Phone

rings and cell phone. As soon as | do these hearings, it
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al ways happens. But anyway. Ms. Schellin, do we have any
prelimnary matters?

M5. SCHELLIN: Yes. On the rul emaking case, the
only proffered expert witness that seens to apply for this,
of f of your --

CHAIR HOOD: Ms. Schellin, let me --

M5. SCHELLIN. -- cheat sheet is --

CHAI R HOOD: Ms. Schellin, can | back up for a
second? | thought | was going to do the --

MS. SCHELLIN: Rul emaking first.

CHAI R HOOD: Yes, |'mdoing the rul emaki ng but |
t hought | was going to do the roll call vote for the cl osed
nmeet i ngs.

M5. SCHELLIN. Oh yes. Yes. Prelimnary matters,
yes. |If the Comm ssion would pl ease vote on Cl osed Meeting
for the remai nder of the year for both hearings and neetings
since we're not inthe office and the Comm ssi on doesn't have
the access to OAG prior to hearings. We'd also like to
i ncl ude those.

And whet her we have them or not doesn't matter,
but if we need one prior to a hearing than we have that
option to do one at 3:30 prior to a hearing. |If we don't
need it, then we just don't do it.

CHAI R HOOD:  kay.

MS. SCHELLIN:. But we'd like to have that option
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and have you go ahead and vote.

CHAI R HOQOD: Ckay. Thank you. Let's do that
first.

Ckay, i n accordance of 405(c) of the Open Meeti ngs
Act, D.C. Oficial Code 2-575(c), | nove that the Zoning
Commi ssion hold closed virtual neetings on each Monday,
Tuesday and Thursday that is scheduled to hold a public

nmeeting or public hearing for remainder of calendar year
2020.

The cl osed neetings wll begin at 2:30 --

VICE CHAIR M LLER  Second. That was a second
made too early.

(Laughter.)

CHAIR HOOD: And all right, that's good. Renenber
t hat when you disagree with ne, | want you to be early with
t he second.

VICE CHAIR M LLER:  Ckay.

(Laughter.)

CHAI R HOOD: And for the purpose of obtaining
| egal advice fromny counsel on all cases and to deliberate
upon, but not voting on, the contested case as schedul ed on
the Comm ssion's agenda. |s there a second?

It's been seconded. WIIl the Secretary please
take a roll call vote on the notion before us now that has

been seconded?
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M5. SCHELLIN:.  Chai rman Hood?

CHAI R HOOD:  Yes.

M5. SCHELLIN:  Vice Chair Mller?

VICE CHAIR M LLER  Yes.

M5. SCHELLIN:.  Comm ssi oner Shapiro?

COW SSI ONER SHAPI RO Yes.

MS. SCHELLIN:  Conm ssi oner May?

COW SSI ONER MAY:  Yes.

M5. SCHELLIN:  Comm ssi oner Turnbul | ?

COWM SSI ONER TURNBULL:  Yes.

M5. SCHELLIN: The vote carries 5-0.

CHAI R HOOD: Sorry about that. As it appears, the
noti on has been passed. | request that the Ofice of Zoning
provi de noti ce of these closed virtual neetings in accordance
with the act.

Anything else on this, M. Schellin?

M5. SCHELLIN: Not on that.

CHAIR HOOD: Ms. Schellin, et me digress. Do you
know St even Sher?

MS. SCHELLIN. ©Ch yes, sir. About al nost 19 years
ago before | started with the Ofice of Zoning | had the
pl easure of working with himat Holland & Knight. And prior
to that we worked together at Wl kes Artis.

CHAIR HOOD: |Is there any way we can bring Steve

Sher up? I'd like to read this. Steve Sher will retire on
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9
June on 30th, 2020. After nore than 40 years as a | eading

consultant on the Zoning Regulations in the District of
Col unbi a.

For nore than 25 years he has advi sed devel opers
and property owners on interpretation and application of the
devel opnent regul ati ons and approval process in the city.
Most recently, as a director of zoning and | and use services
at the lawfirmof Holland & Knight, 1'd like to say he wote
the 58 regs. Prior to the zoning, the private sector for
nore than 14 years, M. Sher was an enpl oyee in the various
zoning and planning offices of the District of Colunbia.

M. Sher has (technical difficulties) sorry?

M. Sher served as the Executive Director of
Zoning Secretaries for eight years. As such, he was the
Chi ef Executive Qperating Administrative Oficer for the
Zoni ng Conmm ssion and the Board of Zoning Adjustnent of the
District of Col unbi a.

M. Sher supervised the handling of over 1,600
cases before the Board of Zoni ng Adj ustnent and nunerous re-
zoning planning and devel opnent and text anendnment cases
bef ore the Zoni ng Comm ssi on.

M. Sher played a leading role in many mgjor
cases, such as the Verizon Center, the New Washi ngton
Convention Center, the redevel opnent of an the O d Hex Bl ock

on 7th and F, the new headquarters for the United States
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Departnent of Transportation at the Sout heast Federal Center
and t he redevel opnent of Capper/Carroll sburg Public Housing
Projects in Southeast. The redevel opnent of the Waterside
Mal |l site and to the waterfront site m xed-use project.

M. Sher served as the Mayor's Conmm ssion, on the
Mayor's Conmm ssion on Downtown Housing Conprehensive Plan
Assessment Task Force, where | served with him The
Conpr ehensi ve Pl an Revi si on Task Force and the Zoni ng Revi ew
Task Force.

He has been a guest lecturer at semnars at
various universities and professional organizations in
pl anni ng zoning issues. M. Sher is retiring this com ng
June the 30th and | thought that that warranted us to say
somet hi ng because he has served this CGty, stellarly, and he
has served us well.

Contributions that M. Sher has made to this City
will goon. W will be the recipients and benefits of it for
years to cone. So | want to congratulate M. Sher on his
next phase that he goes into. But | can tell you this story
and then | would like to, hopefully we can bring himup or
hear fromhim M. Sher --

MR. YOUNG | have himon the phone if you wanted
to hear from hin®

CHAI R HOOD: kay. | renmenber, let ne just

finish. | remenber M. Jerrily, the late Jerrily Kress
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al ways tell nme when I first got on the Zoni ng Conm ssi on, he
said, Anthony, when you look in the room and you ever see

Wayne Quinn and Steve Sher, it's big.

And I'lIl never forget that. And | know a | ot of
times, and | renenber M. Sher because a lot of tines,
especially when | first saw, and he probably still doing it,

but he would | ook up through his glasses when | was saying
and he probably was saying, well, what is this guy really
tal ki ng about.

But | would tell you that he's always been
courteous, respectful. And he's a wealth of know edge. And
t he know edge that he has put intothis Gty is a beneficial,
is a benefit to the residents all over this City. Wether
you oppose what he was saying or didn't oppose. He brought
a different perspective and he has served this Cty well.

Anybody el se want to say anything? If not, | want

to hear fromVice Chair Ml ler.

VICE CHAIR MLLER: Yes. | just wanted to concur
with all of your comments, M. Chairman. | had the pleasure
of working with and being on the receiving end of a |ot of
comrents from M. Sher over the years. And he is very
knowl edgeable, | learned a ot fromhim And he is a good
person. So | wish, | too wish himwell in his next phase.

CHAI R HOOD: kay, anybody el se? kay, Paul, can

we hear from hinf

NEAL R. GROSS
COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS
1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W.
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com




A WD

o O

~l

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

12
MR YOUNG He should be able to tal k now.

(Tel ephonic interference.)

MR SHER. Ckay. Can you hear ne?

COW SSI ONER SHAPI RO W got an echo.

CHAIR HOOD: Try to nute everybody.

COMWM SSI ONER SHAPIRG:  It's Paul .

M5. SCHELLIN: Now try it.

MR, SHER Here | am

(Tel ephonic interference.)

COW SSI ONER SHAPI RO Larger than life.

CHAI R HOQOD: Ckay. vell, | tell you what, if
we're able to get hi mbefore we get through toni ght, we woul d
like to hear from him If not, M. Sher, if you can't get
t hrough to us than we wi sh you the best. And everything we

said, we jointly send that. Both the Board and the Zoni ng

Commi ssion send that. And the Staff of O fice of Zoning send
t hat .

So, Ms. Schellin, 1 need to go back to a
procedure, then we'll get right intoit. But if he conmes up,
Paul , if you could let us know we'd appreciate it.

kay. Now for the rul emaking, the hearing wl
be conducted in accordance with provisions 11 DCVR Chapter
5 as follows, prelimnary natters.

A presentation by the Petitioner, who has up to

60 m nutes. Reports of other governnent agencies, report of
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the ANC, testinony of organizations and individuals,
organi zations five mnutes, individuals three m nutes.

Wi | e the Conmi ssion reserves the right to change
thetinmnelimts of the presentations if necessary, it intends
to adhere to the tine limts as strictly as possible. And
notice that no time shall be exceeded. Again, as we've
al ready seen, if you have issues, the OZ hotline Nunber is
202-727- 5471.

At this time the Conmission wll consider any
prelimnary nmatters. Ms. Schellin, do we have any
prelimnary matters for this case?

MS5. SCHELLIN: Yes. | think the, as | was saying
earlier, | think the only proffered expert witness fromthis
list, that relates to this case, woul d be Shane Dettman wi th
regards to | and use and zoning for the actual text anmendnent.

CHAI R HOOD: Ckay. | think we've already
proffered him

MS. SCHELLI N: | don't think, yes, he's been
prof fered before.

CHAIR HOOD: Al right. So we don't need to --

MS. SCHELLI N: | don't think in our text, the
architect or transportati on engi neer is necessary as experts
in the text anendnent case. What does the Comm ssion think
for text amendnent, do you think that's necessary?

CHAI R HOOD: Maybe this is set for the next case,
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| don't know. | think we're fine just for this anendnent.
MS. SCHELLI N Yes.
CHAI R HOQD: Unl ess | hear from others. Ckay.

Al right, so we're going to stick to that.

Anyt hing el se, Ms. Schellin? And we'll stick with
his expert status.

M5. SCHELLIN:  Not hi ng el se.

CHAI R HOOD: Okay. Can we, hopefully we can bring
up the participants who are going to be, M. Dettman and
whoever else. | don't knowif Ms. Batties is com ng up, but
if we can bring them up now.

MS. SCHELLIN: Yes. That would be M. Branbl e,
Ms. Thonmpson, Ms. Kinlow, M. Batties.

CHAI R HOOD: kay, let's bring the whol e team up.

MS. SCHELLI N: Al right. M. Minfredi, M.
Andres, if needed, and M. Dettnan.

CHAI R HOOD:  Ckay. |f those who don't mnd, if
you show your canera, | prom se you we're not | ooki ng we j ust
like to see who we're talking to. If not, we understand, so
it's your choice. But either way. M. Dettrman have a
problem He hurry up and hid his canera.

(Laughter.)

CHAI R HOQOD: Ckay, Ms. Batties, however you all
want to begin, you may proceed.

M5. BATTIES: Hi . Good evening.
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M5. SCHELLIN: We need to know how nuch time?

MS. BATTIES: Oh. W should, 45 m nutes or | ess.
CHAI R HOOD: How nuch?

M5. BATTIES: Forty-five mnutes or |ess.

CHAI R HOOD: Twenty?

M5. BATTIES: Forty-five m nutes.

CHAIR HOOD: Forty-five m nutes?

MS. BATTIES: Yes.

CHAI R HOOD: Commi ssi oners, do we need 45? Ckay,

why don't you try to do it in 20.

MS. BATTIES: | got you.

CHAIR HOOD: Did M. Sher hear all those things?

M5. BATTIES: Yes. M. Sher is right here next
to ne.

CHAI R HOOD: Vell, how cone he didn't cone up
when, | wanted --

MS. BATTI ES: |  know. We're having technica
difficulties.

CHAI R HOOD:  kay.

MS. BATTIES: Can you hear us?

MR. YOUNG | think that's probably why there was
f eedback i f you guys were in the sanme roomand he was calling
in on a different |ine.

MS. BATTI ES: Yes, that's what happened. But

after our hearings M. Sher will cone sit next to nme for the
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Conmi ssi on.

CHAIR HOOD: Okay. That's fine. Ckay, you al
may begi n.

M5. BATTIES: Al right. Good afternoon. Leila
Batties, Steven Sher and Shane Dettman with the Law Fi rm of
Hol l and & Knight on behalf of the Applicant, Children's
Nati onal at Walter Reed.

In addition to our expert wtnesses, Dr. Denice
Cora-Branble, the Chief Medical Oficer Children's National
Hospital, wll testify on behalf of Children's.

Just a brief summary of our petition. Children's
seeks to anend the Walter Reed regulations in Subtitle K,
Chapter 9 of the Zoning Regul ations. Effectively to expand
those regulations to abide to the 12 acre property owned by
Children's Hospital.

And there are three specific and primary changes
tothe regulations. First is the creation of seven new Wt er
Reed zones. Walter Reed 9 through, WR-9 through WR-15. And
establishing the heights and densities for these specific
zones.

Providing for certain uses in the permtted zones
and then creating a parking maxi num of 1,600 parking spaces
for the Children's property.

The creation of the WR-9 through WR-15 zones is

consistent with the Zoning Act. And the heights and
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densities proposed are conpatible with those at the Parks at
Wal ter Reed, which is i mmedi ate east of our site.

The proposed uses for the property are consi stent
wth the restrictions on the deed that convey the property
fromthe US Arny to Children's. The deed specifically
restricted the use of the property to the protection of
public health, including research and specific ancillary or
I nci dental uses and activities.

And finally, the parking nmaxi numaccounts for the
existing parking garage on the site as well as the
possibility of two-tier below grade parking, if and when
additional facilities are constructed. And also takes into
account mtigating any parking inpacts on the surrounding
Shepherd Park residential nei ghborhood.

Before | turn ny testinony, the presentati on over
to Dr. Cora-Branble, | just want to note that Children's has
done a trenendous job with community outreach. It takes the,
its partnership with the community very seriously.

We have net several tines with the ANC, the Wal ter
Reed Community Advisory Committee and several <civic
organi zations in proximty to the property. And the ANC 4A
issued a resolution in support of this project back in
Novenber. Very early on in the process.

In its support for this project, and | want to

acknowl edge Conmi ssi oner Steve Whatley, | don't knowif he's
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on or not, but he's been instrunental in working wth
Children's. He lives directly across the street from the
entrance at Children's Walter Reed on Fern Street and he has
made sure that stakehol der engagenent was ongoi ng t hr oughout
this process.

The ANC resol ution requires Children's to go back
to the ANC for any new construction. That has to go through
HPRB, and for any buildings that are constructed beyond 85-
feet in height. Whichis the maxi numheight permtted at the
Parks at Walter Reed.

And lastly I'll note that thereis several letters
in support of this project in the record. The letters cone
from residents in imediate proximty to the Walter Reed
property.

They conme from organi zati ons t hroughout the Gty
f ocused on econom ¢ devel opnment and public policy. And then
there are letters fromChildren's partners for the research
and innovation building. Specifically Virginia Tech and
Johnson & Johnson | nnovati on.

| do want to acknow edge one letter in the record
fromthe residents on the 1400 Bl ock of Floral Street. They
were not opposed to the project but are seeking specific,
support for a specific traffic mtigation, which M. Andres
is prepared to address.

And with that, I will turn the presentation over
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to Dr. Cora-Branble.

DR. CORA- BRAMBLE: Good afternoon, M. Chairnan
and Conm ssioners. Thank you for the opportunity to provide
testi nony (Tel ephonic interference.)

I'm Dr. Cora-Branble, |'m the Chief Medical
Oficer for Anbulatory and Community Health Services at
Children's National Hospital.

COW SSI ONER SHAPI RO.  Doctor, |I'mhaving trouble
hearing you. |I'msorry, it's just alittle bit nuffled, I'm
not sure if there is anything we can do about it.

MR. YOUNG Try now.

MS. BATTIES: CQur slides that should be pull ed up.
Paul , are you able to reach them

(OFf mcrophone comments.)

M5. BATTIES: Who's controlling then? So, Paul,
can you put it on the next slide please?

DR. CORA- BRAMBLE: Can you hear me now?

COMWM SSI ONER  SHAPI RO Good and strong. That
sounds great. Thank you so mnuch.

DR. CORA-BRAMBLE: Ckay, I'Il start over again.
Good afternoon, M. Chai rnman and Conm Ssioners. Thank you
for the opportunity to provide testinony in support of the
text and nmap anmendnents for Children's National at Walter
Reed.

| am Dr. Denice Cora-Branble, |I'm the Chief
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Medi cal Officer for Anbul atory and Conmunity Heal th Services
at Children's National Hospital. And with ne today are M.
Tonya Vidal Kinlow, she's Vice President of Community
Engagenent, Advocacy and Governnent Affairs. Dr. Mark
Bat shaw, he's OChief Academc Oficer. And M. Irene
Thonpson, Director of the Research and I nnovation Project.

For 150 years Children's National has been an
I ntegral part of the fabric of this region. And now nore
than ever we're committed to our mssion to serve our
patients and their famlies.

W are a not-for-profit, 323 bed Children's
Hospital that is locally governed and the second | argest
enployer in the District of Colunbia with nore than 7,000
enpl oyees.

Last week U. S. News and Wrld Report named us in
their annual best children's hospital list. W are in the
top ten again overall and nunber one in rheunatol ogy for the
fourth year in arow. W are the best hospital in the nation
for babi es.

Nearly 16,000 children are admtted to our
hospi tal each year, and we provi de nearly 670, 000 out pati ent
visits. The mpjority of which are covered by Medicaid.
During the flu season, our average daily census is
consistently 20 or nore patients per day overcapacity,

particularly in the three intensive care units.
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Qur need to grow is why we acquired the property
at the fornmer Walter Reed Arny Medical Center. |In Novenber
of 2016 the U. S. Arny Corps of Engi neer conveyed 12 acres to
Children's National at Walter Reed, LLC A whol | y- owned
subsidiary of Children's Hospital.

The property included four existing structures.
The former Arned Forces Institute of Pathology, a forner
medical ward, a fornmer post theater and a 1,000 space
structured parking garage.

For us, the Walter Reed property offered two
i nportant benefits. First, it helped us solve our space
constraints on our main canpus, and second, it allows us to
grow our pediatric mnmedical research while bringing an
i nportant new i ndustry into the District of Col unbia.

As a condition of +the transfer, Children's
National committed to using the Walter Reed property for the
protection of the public's health. Including research. The
Walter Reed property will beconme hone for the Children's
National Research Institute and part of our outpatient
pediatric primary care operations.

Rel ocating these two prograns allows us to build
additional inpatient clinical care space at the hospital
Qur vision is to transformthe future of pediatric nedicine
t hrough i nnovati on and research, that it advances the health

and wel | - bei ng of children.
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The site and existing structures are being
renovated in two phases. Phase one, the work currently
underway i ncl udes repl acing all underground utility |ines and
renovating the auditorium clinical buildings, garage and
hal f of the iconic research building.

The renovated research space wll be hone to the
Children's National Research Institute Center for Cenetic
Medi ci ne Research and Rare Disease Institute. Johnson &

Johnson | nnovations international i1ncubator, called JLABS,

will bring up to 50 startup conpanies, as well as provide
space for the U S. Departnent of Health and Human Services
Bi onedi cal Advance Research and Devel opnent Aut hority, known
as BARDA.

BARDA will work with the innovation startups
dedi cated t o t he advancenent of nmedi cal count erneasures ai ned
at securing our nation from various threats, including
pandem cs and energi ng i nfectious diseases.

The third tenant in the research building will be
Virginia Tech Center for Cancer Research, a |ongstanding

academ c partner of Children's Research Institute. The
synergy of this diverse community of scientists, clinician
startups and academicians wll create an innovation and
research ecosystem The first of its kind worl dw de to focus
on pediatrics. \Were the benefit of peer co-location wll

accel erate di scoveries and advancenents.
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The project at Walter Reed will also bring a
growh industry to the District of Colunbia bionedical
research and i nnovation. Wiich wll be on par with Maryl and
and Virginia. This initial phase of renovation wll also
bring pediatric primary and specialty care services to Ward
4. Where currently there are virtually no pediatric
provi ders.

We are on schedul e to be operational of July 2021.
The second phase of the renovation wi ||l address the renai ni ng
space in the research building.

W're currently applying for the text and map
anendnments because the Walter Reed property is currently
zoned R-1-B, suitable for low density residential. As new
owners we want to establish zoning appropriate for private
ownership that aligns with its actual use.

Moving forward, new partners wll bring a
commitnent to the strategic vision of the property, as well
as capital fusion to fund additional buildings. W have been
approached by nul ti pl e organi zati ons that see t he opportunity
for growi ng the nedical research and i nnovation industry in
the District of Colunbia.

Children's National is significantly invested in
the District and we take our role as an anchor institution
very seriously. As evidence of our commtnent, in Fiscal

Year 2019 Children's Nati onal i nvested nore than $161 m |l li on
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in total comunity benefit. W have built and maintai ned a

strong working relationship with ANC 4A and Comm ssi oner

What | ey.

We regul arly present at ANC 4A neetings, prior to
the stay-at-honme order, and wll continue when the order is
lifted. Children's National recognizes the inportance of

effective and sincere comunity engagenent. W | ook forward
to building our pediatric public health research and
I nnovati on project at Walter Reed and we ask that you pl ease
approve our zoning application.

And now | et nme introduce David Manfredi of El kus
Manfredi Architects, who will provide an overview of the
pl anni ng principles, as well as the proposed hei ght, density
and mappi ng.

CHAI R HOOD: So, just for the record, Ms. Batties,
if Ms. Batties, if you can cone back. | know you all are
social distancing. So apparently you want to do the text,
| call for the text amendnent cases. This is not your, this
i s your presentation for 19-24, what is it, 19-24A, correct?

MS. BATTI ES: VWell, we were going to ask the
Commi ssion to accept the testinony for both cases.

CHAI R HOOD: So, the problemthat |I'm having now
is that | have read the opening and | did the rul enaking
first. | didn't even read the contested case, but |I'm

hearing all about the project now So | don't know to, |
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don't want to confuse anything.

MS. BATTI ES: Well, vyou're hearing about the
property. So the property does have sone existing structures
on the property now. So, she kind of gave you an overvi ew
of what's there now and what's going on with the property --

CHAIR HOOD: So --

M5. BATTIES: -- but that doesn't relate to the --

CHAI R HOQOD: Let nme ask you this, is this your,
are you saying that you all are talking about the text
anmendnent only?

So | have another case, the contested case w |
come up afterwards.

MS. BATTIES: Correct.

CHAI R HOOD: Ckay, this is your case. Thank you.
| just wanted to nmake sure.

M5. BATTIES: Gkay, the next person on our team
totestify is David Manfredi with El kus Manfredi Architects.
Paul, are you able to find himin the group of attendees?
Ckay.

MR. YOUNG Yes, heis in, he just needs to unnute
his mc. And you should mute yours.

MS. BATTIES: Ckay, thank you.

MR. MANFREDI : Good afternoon, Conm ssioners, this
is David Manfredi from El kus Manfredi Architects in Boston

You can go to the next slide please.
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Very soon the historic Walter Reed site wll see
all three of its conponent parks cone back to life once
again. The parks at Walter Reed have already been activated
with the D.C. International Schools and the Latin Anmerican
Mont essori Bilingual Charter Schools on the sout hwest corner
of the site. And the m xed-use residential devel opnent on
t he sout heast corner at Georgia and Aspen w |l open soon.

Denolition of Building 2 is al nost conplete. And
frontage along GCeorgia Avenue 1is being prepared for
devel opnent .

The Foreign M ssions Center is honme to t he Enbassy
of Libya, the first chancery onsite. This zoning text and
map anmendnent will enable the |ong-term devel opnment of the
Children's National project as a world class pediatric
research and i nnovati on ecosystem

The first phase of the Children's National project
will be fully realized by 2021

Next slide please. The Children's National
project consists of the rehabilitation of three certified
hi storic structures.

Can | get the next slide please? Building 52,
whi ch you can see one of the black circles, is the |ast
remai ni ng of several former Army nedical wards building --

COMM SSI ONER SHAPI RO W | ost your audi o.

MR, MANFREDI : Ckay. Hopefully you can hear ne
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now. Ckay.

Building 52 is the last remaining of the Arny
medi cal wards. Building 53 is the post theater. Buil ding
54 is the fornmer Arnmed Forces Institute of Pathol ogy. And
adjacent to it you see Building 3, which is the Ronbau
Gar age.

To the north, along Alaska and Fern Street, the
nei ghborhood is primarily residential. Andinthe short-term
the site will be accessed fromthe north at Fern Street. In
the very near-term Dahlia Street will open Walter Reed to
the general public and it wll connect Alaska Avenue to
Geor gi a Avenue.

Next slide please. To the east of the site, the
Wal t er Reed zones establish a m x of uses within the historic
fabric of Walter Reed.

To the west the Foreign Mssion Center wll
consi st of chancery devel opnent with the closing of 14th
Street being part of the Foreign M ssion Center master plan.

The rehabilitation of the Children's National
project, followi ng National Park Service guidelines, wll
preserve the original uses and the original Walter Reed
vi sion bringing back clinical uses and nedi cal research and
| ayi ng t he foundation for world class pediatric research and
i nnovat i on.

Next slide please. Wilter Reed Zone 1, which is
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In the upper right of the site, along the northern edge of
Fern Street, consists of residential uses conplenenting the
residential nei ghborhood to the north and has a height limt
of 45-feet, stepping up to 55-feet to the south.

In Walter Reed zones 2 and 3, directly south, the
parks at Walter Reed master plan i ncorporate m xed-use al ong
George Avenue to the right, conmbining commercial retail and
residential uses and limting heights to 85-feet.

That sane planning principles, that is |ower
hei ght and density to the north and higher density to the
sout h, have i nfluenced the seven new Wal t er Reed zones on t he
Children's National site.

Next slide please. The Foreign M ssion Center,
whi ch you see highlighted on the left, to the left of the
i mage, you can see a setback along Al aska Avenue, which
provides a buffer to the residential neighborhood across
Al aska.

The Foreign Mssion Center, orients primry
facades towards Dahlia. 14th Street will be cl osed at Al aska
and the parcels to the west of Building 54, which is the
| arge former pathology building, will be accessed from 14th
Street, via Dahlia, as a tree line street connecting the
nei ghbor hood east to west and 14th Street will serve as both
access and park connecting the site north and south. An

opened space at Menorial Chapel will be preserved at the

NEAL R. GROSS
COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS
1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W.
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com




A wWwN

o O

~l

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

29
i ntersection of Dahlia and 14t h.

Next slide please. Very quickly. These are two
bui | di ng sections. W showthese to you for a sinple reason.
To the left you see the Children's National proposed hei ght
for lab and research buildings. These buildings require 15-
feet floor-to-floor height given the conpl exity of mechani cal
system

To the right you see the typical residential
bui | di ngs at the parks at Walter Reed. Residential buildings
typically are nore like 11-6 floor-to-floor. Both buildings
are seven stories in height.

Next slide please. The proposed zoni ng overl ay
on the Children's National property consists of seven new
Wal ter Reed zones nunbered 9 through 15.

Walter Reed zone Nunber 9, along Fern, aligned
with the residential uses at the Parks of Walter Reed to the
east. The renmmining portions of the site consist of Walter
Reed Zones 10 t hrough 15.

Next slide. Nowwe're closer in and you can see,
ki nd of screen back the existing building.

The proposed Walter Reed zones are basically
defined by those existing buildings. Walter Reed Zone 9 is
the area to the east of 13th place, which runs north to south
bet ween Fern and Dahlia. And is north of the existing garage

up to Fern Street.
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Wal ter Reed Zone 10 consists of the existing 965

space parking garage, which has been reduced from 1,100
spaces. And it now al so houses a solar array over its entire
top floor.

Wal ter Reed Zone 11 is the area to the east of the
garage and east of Building 52. This zone is anticipated for
I nstitutional uses, and as such has established a hei ght of
90-feet relying with the floor-to-floor requirenents that we
just saw in the building section.

The sout hern, the 150-feet of the zone is held as
dedi cated green buffer zone, which features a stormater
basi n and provi des open space. Not only for the site but for
t he surroundi ng comunity.

Wal ter Reed Zone 12 consists of the area south of
t he garage and includes historic structures in Building 52
and 3 with those existing uses that is clinical, and
conference center to renain.

West of 13th Street, 13th Place, the area to the
south of Building 54 constitutes Walter Reed 13. Existing
Bui | di ng 54 defines Walter Reed 14, which is currently being
rehabilitated as research. It is the largest structure on
the site. The southern portion w |l open first, the northern
portion to follow | ater.

Walter Reed 15 is the final zone directly to the

north of Building 54 with frontage along Al aska and Fern
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Street. Fromthe west, the green buffer established al ong
Al aska, on the Foreign Mssion Center site, continues north
and wraps around Fern Street providing a dedicated setback
of 80-feet along Fern Street in deference to the residenti al
nei ghborhood to the north.

The height in Walter Reed Zone 15 is set at 85-
feet, while Walter Reed 13 and Walter Reed 14, bei ng deeper
and farther south on the site, have a proposed hei ght of 110-
feet.

We now have three cross-sections through the site
which will illustrate the proposed height. So you can go to
the next slide. And this is Cross-Section Nunber 1. |If you
| ook to the upper right of the site you can see a mniature
version of the site plan. You can see the redline is Site
Section Nunmber 1. |It's cut fromFern Street to Dahli a.

The section east of the garage, soits Walter Reed
9, the north along Fern, and Walter Reed 11, with a 150-f oot
green buffer zone to the south al ong Dahli a.

The next section, cross-section nunber 2, is the
one inthe mddle. It cuts through the existing garage. It
illustrates Walter Reed 9 north of the garage, along wth
Walter Reed 10, which is the garage site. You can see it's
the solar array. And Walter Reed Buil dings 52 and 53, which
exist to the south along Dahli a.

And lastly, cross-section Nunber 3, go to the
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next. Thank you. This sectionis taken through the existing

bui Il ding 54, which is west of 13th Pl ace.
It shows the 80-foot dedicated green buffer zone
Wth Walter

al ong Fern. Reed 15 set at 85-feet and Wlter

Reed 13 and 14 set at 110-feet.

My
And

|ast slide, next, is, shows the entire

District. in the long-term the Children's National

project will carry on the traditional nedical research and

clinical uses at Walter Reed.

The site sits al ong existing bus routes at Al aska

and nearby CGeorgia. A shuttlebus will connect the site from

t he Takoma Station netro. And the Capital Bi keshare station

there, which otherwise is a 15 to 20 m nute wal k away. The

current project will provide long and short-term bicycle

par ki ng onsite.

Qpportunities for future additional parking are

limted. They will be belowgrade with Walter Reed 11,

Walter Reed 13 and Walter Reed 15 being the nost feasible.

Expanding the ulti mate capacity of parking, existing parking

at 965 spaces, for a future total parking of 1,600 spaces

onsite.

This zoning text and nmap anendnent for the

Children's National site wll ensure the long-term

devel opnment of the site in tandem and in concert with the

nei ghboring devel opnment sensitive to the residential
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nei ghborhood to the north and will preserve the spirit of
pi oneering nedical research at Walter Reed. And wth that,
we Wil transition to Shane Dettnman from Hol | and & Kni ght.

MS. BATTI ES: Thank you, Davi d. Bef ore Shane
gives his testinony, M. Chairman, | just want to note, in
response to your question about the case and our testinony,
we'd like to incorporate, by reference, the testinony that
we're providing for this case into next application.

So that being said, Shane's testinony will speak
to the, kind of the | egal standard of reviewfor both, a text
anendnment and a nmap anendnent.

It's really hard to kind of tal k about one w t hout
the other, so we just ask that you indulge us and then be
willing to accept our testinony for the next application.

CHAI R HOOD: COkay. | wish we would have probably
have di scovered that earlier because for ne, 1'll be frankly
honest, | don't know about ny colleagues, I'm a little
confused. Because | normally just talk about, |I don't talk
a |lot about a project in a rul emaking.

| see sone simlarities, | kind of get where
you' re going, but for nme it's kind of, and plus the record.
So now | got to figure, | guess I'Il leave that up to the
Ofice to figure out, how to incorporate the rul enaking
opening with the, | guess they can switch it around but the,

| don't know. Ckay, we'll see how it goes.
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M5. BATTIES: Okay.

MR, DETTMAN: Good afternoon, Conm ssioners. I
just want to confirmthat you can hear ne just fine.

CHAIR HOOD: | actually can hear you a coupl e of
times, so | don't know. W're getting an echo.

MR YOUNG Yes, soneone else you're wth needs
to nute their mcs. | think Ms. Batties.

MR DETTMAN: How is that? That's better, okay.
Good afternoon, Commi SSioners.

CHAIR HOOD: | think if you all are in the sane
room if once she noves away why don't you go over to the mc
where she was. That seens to be working. As |long as you all
stay six feet apart.

MR, DETTMAN: Good afternoon, Conm ssioners.
Paul , if you wouldn't mnd going to the next slide. Thank
you.

Good afternoon again. M testinony this afternoon
will sumrarize how the proposed WR zones neet the standard
of review described wunder Subtitle X of the zoning
regul ati ons.

Next sli de. Now, as the Conmm ssion knows, to
approve the application it nust nake a determi nation that the
proposal is not inconsistent with both the conprehensive pl an
as well as weigh the proposal against the objectives of the

Zoni ng Act.
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Next sli de. As set forth within our witten
conponent anal ysis, the proposal is not inconsistent with the
conprehensi ve plan as a whol e.

The conp plan currently in effect was | ast updat ed
in 2013. Prior to Children's acquiring its portion of the
former Walter Reed Arny Medical Center from the federal
gover nment .

As shown on the slide, the current generalized
policy map designated the site as a |and use change area.
The gquiding philosophy for these types of areas is to
encour age and facilitate newdevel opnent and pronote adaptive
reuse of existing structures, which is exactly what
Children's is doing on the site through the rehabilitation
of the existing structures that are on the site for simlar
uses. Institutional uses that were previously on the site.

Internms of what's expected for future devel opnent
within a | and use change area, the conp plan directs you to
the area elenments for guidance on devel opnent and
redevel opnent .

Next sli de. The Children's National site is
desi gnated as federal on the future | and use nmap, as you see
on the slide here.

And in describing federal sites, the franmework
el ement provi des gui dance on how zoni ng shoul d be est abl i shed

on these types of sites in the event that federal interests
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are termnated. Specifically, just as the policy map points
us to the area elenents, the framework el enent states that
zoning for these areas should be established in a manner
that's consistent with the conp plan policy.

So that's where we focused our evaluation for this
proposal .

Next slide. Turning to the conp plan el enents,
overall the proposal is not inconsistent wwth the policies
of the CGty-wide and the Rock Creek East area el enents.

In terns of |and use and transportation el enent,
the proposal utilizes a portion of a designated large site
to supply needed community services and enploynent
opportunities. It establishes and expands upon the m x of
uses being established on the fornmer Walter Reed sites,
together with the parks devel opnent to the east. It reuses
existing historic structures and it responds to the
surroundi ng context in a way that the devel opnent is pl aced
on the site. And in terns of transportation consideration,
such as parking and circul ation.

Next slide. The proposal is not inconsistent with
the historic preservation and urban design el enents. The
historic structures on this site will undergo, or undergo a
full physical rehabilitation. It will be put back to
institutional uses that are consistent with their original

pur poses.
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As M. Manfredi stated, the planning principles
from the parks developnent to the east infornmed the
devel opnent of the proposed WR zones. To the east of 13th
Pl ace, the height in the WR-9 zone is consistent with the
permtted height in the existing WR zone, WR-1 zone to the
east and relates to the height of the hones across Fern
Street.

On the west side of 13th Place the WR- 15 zone
requi res an 80-foot buffer along Fern Street. And beyond
that buffer that heights transition from85 up to 110-feet.
As you nove further into the interior of the site.

Next slide. The proposal is not inconsistent with
the conmunity services and facilities and economc
devel opnent el enents.

As stated in our application, the site is | ocated
in an area that is underserved in terns of needed primary
medi cal care. And as Dr. Cora-Branble wll nention,
Children's will bring needed pediatric health services to the
site in Phase 1 of its project.

This, as well as other nedical care and research
uses that can be, that will be facilitated through the
proposed text, will help diversify the Districts econony and
spurred growh in the health care industry, which is one of
the Districts core industries.

It's al so going to contribute to the
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revitalization of the fornmer Walter Reed site and the
sur roundi ng nei ghbor hood.

Next slide. The siteis located in the Rock Creek
East planning and sone of the Conp Plan priorities for this
area include protection and enhancenent of nei ghborhood
stability, upgradi ng public services, specifically notingthe
| ack of medical care services in the northern portion of the
pl anni ng area, transportation rel ated i ssues, such as parKki ng
and circulation as well as historic preservation.

And the policies of the Rock Creek East el enent
are ainmed at addressing these planning and devel opnent
priorities. And for many of the sane reasons, this proposal
is not inconsistent with the City-w de. It's also not
i nconsistent with the policies of the Rock Creek East
el ement .

The permitted uses through the WR, proposed WR
zones, are consistent wth the policies relating to
redevel opnment of the Walter Reed site, proposed heights,
densities and setbacks to respect the scal e and densities of
adj acent nearby properties.

And Children's has taken into consideration the
nei ghbor hoods concerns rel ati ve t o parki ng and transportation
circulation around the site.

Next sli de. In addition to the conmp plan, |

menti oned the Conmm ssion nust give consideration to the
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Zoning Act when evaluating the proposal, which says the

regul ati ons shall be designed to | essen congestion, pronote
health, safety and wel fare, provi de adequate |light and air,
prevent overcrowding of land and pronote favorable
di stribution of uses.

Next slide. Wile there is no specific project
proposed here, next slide please, we know that in the past
the Comm ssion has asked applicants, generally, about what
potential inpacts a text and map anendnent ni ght have.

And so the slide before you provi des an eval uati on

of the proposed WR zones agai nst those areas of the Zoning

Act . And so, upon evaluation | believe the proposal is
consistent with the Zoning Act and it will not cause any
substantial adverse inpacts and in certain years will have

favorabl e i npacts.

Next slide. Therefore, Conmm ssioners, upon
evaluation |I conclude that the proposal is not inconsistent
with the conp plan and is consistent with the stated
objectives of the Zoning Act. And thus satisfies the
standard of review necessary to obtain approval from the
Commi ssi on under Subtitle X of the Zoning regul ati ons.

Next slide. This concludes ny testinony today.
| ' m happy to answer any questions you nay have.

CHAI R HOOD: (kay, is the presentation conplete?

MS. BATTIES: Yes. Yes, it is.
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CHAI R HOCD: Ckay. Let nme do this before we

proceed. |'magoing to ask M. Young, Paul Young. |f you can
bring up, M. Tondro, Maximlian Tondro, please.

MR. YOUNG Yes, ne give ne one second.

CHAI R HOOD: Okay, take your tinme. That's just
a polite thing to say, take your tine. | really don't nean
t hat .

(Laughter.)

CHAI R HOOD: So we have Ms. Kinlow. |s Ms. Kinlow
goi ng to speak?

M5. BATTIES. No. Mss, go ahead.

MR. YOUNG M. Tondro should be in.

CHAI R HOOD: | don't see him yet. At | east |
don't see him M. Tondro, can you hear ne?

COMM SSI ONER SHAPI RO:  He's got audi o.

CHAI R HOOD: Onh, okay.

COW SSI ONER SHAPI RO Now he has vi deo.

CHAI R HOOD: Ckay. M. Tondro, just going
forward, you' ve heard the discussion about incorporating.
Is that the right course that we can take or woul d you j ust
advi se ne on that or us?

MR.  TONDRO. Sur e. | believe that what M.
Batti es was suggesting was to incorporate by reference the
predi cation they make in this case, the text anendnent case,

into the next case, the nap anendnent case, as to, just for
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efficiency sake, for the Conm ssion.

And that woul d be fine. | would suggest that when
next case is called, the map anendnent case is called, and
you call for the applicant in that case, Ms. Batties can just
restate that request to the Commssion and then the
Comm ssion can then agree to incorporate by reference what
has been presented in this case.

CHAI R HOCD: Ckay. Let nme see. Conmi ssi oner s,
any questions of what M. Tondro just nentioned?

| just want to nake sure legally we were on good
solid ground. Okay. Al right, thank you. Thank you, M.
Tondr o.

Ckay, | think we're at the point now where we're
going to ask questions, if we have sone. Qur nornal order.
Let me go to Conm ssi oner May.

COMM SSI ONER MAY:  Yes, | just wanted to confirm
somet hi ng about the community involvenent in this specifics
of the plan. | know Ms. Batties made reference to that and
the ANC, to the ANC Commi ssi oner who actually lives on Fern
Street.

Maybe | missed it, maybe | just, it's always
possible to miss it, but | didn't see a specific report from
the ANC in our files for this case.

MS. BATTI ES: It was filed on Novenmber 8th, |

believe. | have to | ook up the --
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COW SSI ONER MAY:  Okay.

M5. BATTIES: -- exhibit nunber.

M5. SCHELLIN: Exhibit 10.

COW SSI ONER MAY:  Exhi bit 10. Huh, okay. [1'l]
find that.

And does anybody know, do have the ANC in the
neeting today? WII they be naking a report?

MS.  BATTI ES: | was advised by Conmm ssioner

What | ey that he woul d not participate today, but | can't say

for sure whether or not he's on the |ine.

COMM SSI ONER MAY: Okay. Al right, thanks. |
did, I don't know how | m ssed this but okay, now | see the
report. That was it for ny questions, thank you.

CHAI R HOCOD: Thank you, Comm ssioner May.
Commi ssi oner Shapiro.

COW SSI ONER SHAPI RO Thank you, M. Chair. Yes,

simlar question around the ANC

So the ANC said that they're support, the one
caveat is that no new building should be constructed to a
hei ght greater than 85-feet unless otherw se reviewed and
approved by ANC and HPRB

So, what |I'm hearing then is that the only
bui |l di ngs that are above that are existing buildings?

M5S. BATTIES: There is an existing building, 54,

is 95-feet. And | think they're taking into account the
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proposed heights in the new Walter Reed zone. So any
bui |l di ngs that would be constructed in WR-12, | think, |I'm
sorry, | need a nap.

But there are two zones that would all ow for, WR-
12 and 13 would allow for 110-feet in height. | believe one
woul d al low for 90-feet in height.

COW SSI ONER SHAPI RO So those buil di ngs won't
nove forward unl ess otherw se reviewed and approved by ANC
4A?

M5. BATTIES: Yes. And any new construction has

to go through HPRB anyway because this is in the historic

district.

COMM SSI ONER SHAPI RO Ckay. That's all | have,
M. Chair.

CHAI R HOOD: Okay, thank you. Conmmi ssi oner
Tur nbul | .

COWMM SSI ONER TURNBULL: Thank you, M. Chair. M.
Batties, thank you and your team for your presentation on
this significant project.

My only question is, Departnent of Transportation
has indicated that due to this project there will be a
significant increase and there will be significant inpacts
on the transportation in the area.

And al t hough the O fice of Planning says that the

Departnment of Transportation has no objection to the map
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anendnent, thereis several qualifications in the report that
t hey have given about things that need to be done as we go
ahead. And | just want to nmake sure that the Applicant is
commtted to looking at all of those itens that the
Departnent of Transportation has pointed out.

M5. BATTIES: Yes, the Applicant is commtted to
all of the mtigation neasures that have been presented by
DDOTI. And to the extent the Conm ssion desires, M. Andres
I's prepared to tal k about those specifically.

COW SSI ONER TURNBULL: Well, the only, he can
menti oned what, the report, M. Andres report is commentary.
We did nention that they were going to do certain things.

But as | say, there were sone caveats that the
Department of Transportation had just nentioned that as a

foll owup, these are things that we're | ooking to do. So if

he's willing to expand upon that, that would be great.
MR.  ANDRES: Good eveni ng. Good eveni ng,
Cormm ssi oner Turnbull, and the Comm ssion. For the record,

Erwin Andres with Gorove Sl ade Associ ates.
So, in response to your question --
COW SSI ONER SHAPIRO. Erwin, we still have the echo.
MR. ANDRES: | will nove over to Leila's --
COMM SSI ONER SHAPI RO Move farther away, pl ease.
MS. SCHELLIN: The problemis, when t hey have nore

t han one systemon in the same room - -
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COWM SSI ONER SHAPI RO. Right, right.

M5. SCHELLIN: -- you get the echo. So, in the
future if you' re going to do this you should have just one
conputer on. And you just, you know, change seats. And, you
know - -

CHAIR HOOD: Well, there's five of us. So, the
echo was fine. Wth five echos, that way each of us get a
voi ce. Long week, believe ne.

COW SSI ONER MAY:  The ot her way they could do it
IS to use headsets. Because it's the sound that's com ng out
of the conputers that's getting repeated. So --

MR. ANDRES: How s this? 1Is this fine?

CHAI R HOOD:  Yes.

COMM SSI ONER MAY:  You sound good.

MR.  ANDRES: Ckay. Al'l right. Good eveni ng

agai n. For the record, Erwn Andres with Gorove S| ade
Associ at es. In response to your question, Comm ssioner
Turnbull, we are committed to inplenment all of the elenents

t hat have been identified in DDOT's report.

DDOT" s report is Exhibit 26. And our response to
that is Exhibit 27. W are going to be required to go to
DDOT Public Space in order to essentially get the permts to
performthe construction, excuse ne, the permts to allowfor
the construction of all the buildings that are covered under

t he proposed map and text anendnent.
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As part of that process we're going to coordinate
with DDOT with respect to all of the specific elenents that
we' ve identifi ed.

One of the critical el enents that we've
I dentified, which has been brought up by one of the comunity
menbers, is the need for a south bound |l eft turn | ane at the
i ntersection of 16th Street and Al aska Avenue.

And we are committed to do the construction at
that | ocation, where we inplenent a left turn |ane, and the
necessary signal nodifications. So, with that |I' mavail abl e
for questions.

COW SSI ONER TURNBULL: Ckay. So, that was one
of the issues that | had noted. So, |I'mglad you' re going
to be doing that. Thank you.

CHAI R HOOD: Ckay. Thank you. Vice Chair Mller.

VICE CHAIR M LLER: Thank you, M. Chairman. And
t hank you, Ms. Batties and your team for your presentation
on this very inportant project, and all the outreach that's
occurred between Children's, and the ANC, and nearby
nei ghbors. So, we appreciate all of that.

So, | think it mght be helpful, not here, but
maybe in a post hearing subm ssion. Slide 24 of the
applicant's presentation that M. Dettman presented was
hel pful, consistency with the Zoning Act.

But | wonder whether it m ght be even nore hel pful
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If in a post hearing subm ssion that's anplified to identify
what he alluded to. But | think it needs to be nore
explicit.

The specific potential adverse inpacts, or
I nconsi stencies with certain Conp Plan policies, stenmng
fromthe height or density, or the transportation, parking
| ssues.

But if you could expand upon that chart with this
explicit identification of potential adverse inpacts,
potential inconsistencies with the Conp Pl an.

And then how they're all, how they're each being
mtigated by the TDM neasures, the green, the TDM neasures
for the parking thing, and all the cars that are com ng in,
the green buffer for the height and density, you, with the
adj acent | ower scal e nei ghbor hood.

It's on nmy m nd because | just read the D.C. Court
of Appeal s vacation, vacating our decision in a case that
this, the applicant's attorneys are famliar wth, the
Par kview, as the intervener in that case.

So, where they criticized our |lack of explicit,
wel |, two out of three judges criticized our |ack of explicit
identification in our Zoning Order of the potential adverse
i npact, potential inconsistencies with Conp Plan, and then
how t hey each are being overcone, or addressed by mtigation

measur es, or outwei ghed by ot her conpeti ng Conprehensi ve Pl an
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policies. That just | think would be hel pful.

And it's touched upon in that Slide 24 in M.
Dettman's presentation, and everybody's presentation. But
| think we need to be explicit.

Al t hough we don't have a party in opposition in
this case. So, it may not be an issue as nuch obvi ously.
So, that's ny only comment. | thank you for all of your work
on this project, a very inportant project.

CHAI R HOOD: So, Ms. Batties, as we nove on |
understand, | understood a little better about the envel ope,
about different zones, and the building structure. | kind
of got that. So, just when we go to the next one, that you
can incorporate, so we nake sure that we have all of it as
st at ed.

So, only question |I have is, |'m concerned when
| read, not necessarily concerned. |'"'m sure with all the

support that's been garnered for this project, and the

ent husiasm for this whole piece, | just note, back to, |
t hi nk Conm ssioner Shapiro wll talk about the approval
process.

| s that sonet hing that the, because | don't think
we can condition it. But is that sonething that Walter Reed,
they're willing to do? |Is that sonmething the applicant's
willing to do?

Because | don't really think, you know, people
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change. Sone of the players here now may be different. So,
as we nove on what will conpel a different group not to
necessarily go to the ANC?

| mean, |I'mjust trying to figure, I"'mtrying to
see how that woul d | ook.

M5. BATTIES: Well, any new construction on this
site has to go through HPRB, because it's in the Walter Reed
Historic District. And the HPRB process requires ANCrevi ew.

So, really, just as part of the process for any
new construction. It gives the community the opportunity to
wei ght in.

CHAIR HOOD: Well, that's --

COW SSI ONER  SHAPI RO, It's not review and
approval .

MS. BATTIES: |'msorry?

COW SSI ONER SHAPI RO It's review, not revi ewand
approval .

M5. BATTIES: Right. Well, that's correct. Well,
| mean, in terns of what, the HPRB revi ew?

COWM SSI ONER SHAPI RO The ANCl etter says they're
conditioning their approval on the ability to review and
approve any buil ding above 85 feet.

M5. BATTIES:. Right. Well, I, you know, | can't
speak for what Children's Hospital nenbers will do. But |I'm

going to ask Tanya Kinlow to speak to their commtnent to --
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CHAI R HOOD: So, you know, | know, all |'msaying
Is, | just don't want us to put the ANC, and sonebody cones
up 15 years fromnow and says, soneone says, | know everybody

who's on this call, and everybody who's worked with it right

NOW.

Because | | ooked at the support fromfornmer Mayor
WIllianms, Federal Cty Council. | | ooked at D.C. Chanber.
| know it's got the support. | just want to nmake sure that

this ANC doesn't pull this letter back up |ater on and say,
oh, we were supposed to approve.

Maybe they neant, and | under stand what
Commi ssioner Shapiro is saying. ["m just, |I'm actually
t hi nking out |loud. Maybe they neant approval in their own
process. But that would not stop anything.

COW SSI ONER SHAPIRO:  But, M. Chair, if | can?
For me this is | ess about the applicant and nore about our
authority, whichis, this doesn't nove forward unl ess the ANC
approves it?

CHAI R HOQOD: And that's what, you and | are

actually saying the sane things. But we're comng from
different ways. So, that's why I'msaying, | don't want to
sit here and, | hear what they're saying.

But as far as we go, we can't, | don't know what,
how we can, we can't regulate that. W mght put it
somewher e. | don't even know if we can put it as a
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condition. Vice Chair MIller, do you want to opine on it?

VICE CHAIR MLLER Yes. | just wanted to agree
with, | think both you and, you, M. Chairman, and what
Comm ssioner Shapiro is saying. W, yes, there's a reason
why it's called Advisory Nei ghborhood Comm ssi on.

The ultimate approving body in this, for these 85
f oot and hi gher buil dings would be the HPRB, or us, if they
need to cone back to us for sonething, or the Zoning
Adm ni strator, whatever.

So, we, | agree that we, | would not put in any
Zoning Order. The approval is required by the ANC for higher
than an 85 foot building. | think the applicant has
comritted to go back on such a building project, to the ANC
for their, and get their recommendati on.

And Ms. Kinlow s nodding. And | would like to
hear fromher. And so, |'"msure that that, the process w ||
allow for their input, and the commtnment of the applicant
to work with the nei ghborhood, to allow for that to work.

But | agree that, with the basic point that our
own aut hority cannot give authority to an ANCthat it doesn't
have. It doesn't have approval authority.

It has reconmendation, great weight authority.
And we try to take that very seriously, as does HPRB. So,
and others. So, that's all | wanted to say.

CHAIR HOOD: So, let ne just add this before M.
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Ki nl ow cones on. | don't want anybody to think that the
Zoning Comnm ssion is not listening to the ANC.

Because that is not the case. Because that's how
it wll get out. W respect the ANC big tine. Believe ne.
| just want to nmake sure that going forward there are no
surprises. And | don't want to put anybody on prom se | and.

But, Ms. Kinlow, we're going to go to Ms. Kinlow.
But | that Ms. Kinlowand this group are going to holdto it.
"' mjust tal king about what may cone later on. M. Kinlow

MS. KI NLOW Comm ssioners, | just wanted to
respond to the question related to Children's National's
Commtnent to, continually to work with the ANC We have
done so fromthe very beginning, even before we were awarded
the property by the Departnent of the Arny.

W went in to talk to the comunity. W have
consistently met with them presented to them tal ked to them
about our plans. And continue, and plan to continue to
engage with them

CHAI R HOOD: Ckay. Thank you, M. Kinlow. Wo
was asking questions? And we, M. Kinlow, we really
appreciate that. W already know you have a stellar record.
So, we al ready knew that.

But |I'm just tal king about, we're just talking
about those who are going to cone |ater on down the |ine.

But hopefully that will all, hopefully that will work itself
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out .

M5. KINLON Well, let ne just say this. | have
no plans on leaving Children's National. And | hope to be
here long into the future to watch this project develop as
we intend to develop it.

CHAIR HOOD: kay. So, maybe we can put that in

t he order. No.

(Laughter)

CHAIR HOOD: Al right. So, let ne ask, who was
asking, | got confused.

COW SSI ONER SHAPI RO | think you, M. Chair.
And then | junped in.

CHAIR HOOD: Oh. On, that's what, okay. | was
asking. Al right. So, that's really all | have. Anybody
need us to go around again? GCkay. Al right.

G ve nme one second. kay. So, we, okay. So, we

go to the report of the Ofice of Planning. Wo's in from
the Ofice of Planning? M. Thonas.

MS. THOVAS: Hi . Good afternoon, M. Chairnan,
Menbers of the Conm ssion. The Ofice of Planning is
recommendi ng approval of the text anmendnent as proposed by
the applicant, as a result of ongoi ng collaboration with the
O fice of the Attorney General, including the application of
zone districts to what was previously referred to as |and

use.
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OP supports these changes as mnor, as the
substance of the original text is unchanged as advertised.
But best reflects in accordance with the Zoning Act. Wth
that 1'll say thank you. And |'m available for any
questi ons.

CHAI R HOOD: Ckay. Thank you. Comm ssioners, any
gquestions? M. May? You know, | was thinking the other day,
we don't necessarily have to unnmute. |f you shake your head,
I'"m |l ooking at you. You raise your hand. So, okay. Al
right. So, Conm ssioner Shapiro. Conm ssioner Turnbull.
Okay. Vice Chair Mller.

VICE CHAIR M LLER. | have no questions. But |
always |li ke to thank the O fice of Planning, Ms. Thonas, for
your report.

M5. THOMAS: Thank you.

CHAIR HOOD: COkay. | too thank you, Ms. Thonas
for your report. Geatly appreciate. Ckay. Let's keep it
novi ng. Report of other Governnent agenci es.

| do notice that, Ms. Batties, you can help ne as
well as what's in the record. | do note that there's
overwhel mngly support, from what | saw. But you did
mention, and | was |ooking for it.

Unless |'ve read, you nentioned this, one of the
exhi bits had some issues. And | didn't see that. Then

again, | may have overl ooked it.
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MS. BATTI ES: There was one community letter
Exhi bit nunber 40. They weren't opposed to our petition.
But they raised a concern about the fact of mtigation, and
specifically asking for the left turn lane onto Al aska
Avenue.

CHAIR HOOD: So --

M5. BATTIES: That was the residents of the 1400
bl ock of Floral Street.

CHAI R HOOD: Ckay. You say Exhibit 407

MS. BATTIES: Yes.

CHAI R HOOD: Okay. My computer, aml on the w ong
case? Because | have, that's the letter from --

MS. BATTIES: But it's, | don't knowif it's fil ed
under 19-24 or 19-24A

CHAI R HOOD: Ch, okay. Because the 40 in 19-24
is fromthe Chanber.

M5. BATTIES. Oh, okay. So, it mght be --

CHAI R HOOD: COkay. GCkay. Al right. So, 1"l
| ook at it when we get to that. Al right. One second.

M5. BATTIES: Yes. It mght not be that nunber.

CHAIR HOOD: All right.

M5. BATTIES: OCh, right. [It's nunber 40 in 24A

CHAI R HOOD: ©Ch, okay. Gkay. Thank you. Thank
you. Okay. Let's see, M. Young, Ms. Schellin, do you we

have anybody that wants to testify, either organizations or
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I ndi vidual s, either in support, opposition, or undeclared?

MS. SCHELLIN:. There were two people. Excuse ne.
Paul , did you unnmute ne?

CHAIR HOOD: Yes. W can hear you.

M5. SCHELLIN. Ckay. So, there were two people
who signed up to testify. | know that Andrew Dauber was
|isted as a proponent. | don't know if Christine Hansen is
a proponent or not.

But she was the only other person that we had
listed to testify. She signed up during the hearing. So,

those are the only two people, if M. Young wants to bring

themin. They'll each have three m nutes.

CHAI R HOOD: Okay. W can bring themup and --

M5. SCHELLIN: And Christine Hansen. And because
of the storml had, | can't see anybody. My conputer's been
knocked out. So, |I'm by phone only. So, | can't see
anybody.

CHAI R HOOD: Ckay. Ckay. W'll work with it.
And if | cut off we'll get the Vice Chairman --

M5. SCHELLIN: Yes. I|I'mgoing to try --

CHAIR HOOD: -- to take over.

MS. SCHELLIN Yes. 1'll try to get ny connection
back while you guys are talking. | can hear you. | just

can't see you.

CHAI R HOOD: Ckay. |Is the young | ady on as wel |,
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Paul ? Is that Christine Hansen?

MR, YOUNG  Yes.

CHAI R HOQOD: Ckay. And let's start with M.
Hansen first, and then we'll go to M. Dauber. Ckay, Ms.
Hansen.

M5. HANSEN:. Am | echoi ng?

CHAI R HOOD:  No.

M5. HANSEN. Ch, good. |'m Christine Hansen.
appreci ate Chai rman Hood calling ne young. But | have |ived
in this house at 1325 Fern Street, | bought it in 1975. And
it's a small house that's directly across fromthe entrance
to the property in question.

Chai rman Hood, Conmm ssioners, | appreciate an
opportunity just to raise a couple of concerns. The concern
| have with the zoning, the Zone 9, new proposed Zone 9
across the street from ne.

Dr. Mnfredi said that it aligns wth the
property, the north side of Fern Street. Qur properties on
the north side of Fern Street are all single fam |y hones.
And the proposed Zone 9 building is a nulti use, |less than
30 days residency, which neets the dictionary definition of
a hotel.

" mvery concerned about that, and howit's going
to be used. And despite going to all the public hearings,

and all of nmy ANC neetings, it's not been expl ai ned.
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Though a gentleman from the departnent of the
Ofice of Planning did tell us it was going to be used to
house parents of patients, even though patients wll not be
at this building.

| must say, | support Children's Hospital. |'ve
been a financial supporter of Children's Hospital. Everyone
| oves Children's hospital.

And it has been suggested to those of us in the
community who are not enthusiastic about what's been laid
out, that any opposition neans that we are opposed to sick
children. And | am not opposed to sick children. | think
that Children's Hospital is wonderful.

| am concerned about my nei ghborhood. And |I'm
concerned about putting up basically a hotel. |'mconcerned
about the 1,600 vehicles that will be accessing the property
froma small entrance across fromny honme. Sixteen-hundred
is nore than ever cane through this when it was privately
owned.

My second concern is just t he zoni ng
classification. Five years ago when the Parks at Wal ter Reed
got special Walter Reed zoning to avoid D.C. zoning we were
told at a community neeting that they needed to have speci al
WR zoning so that they could be ninble. So that they could
easily nmodify plans.

And the D.C. Zoning Act did not wel cone that sort
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of ni nbl eness. Now, | don't understand why, if the proposal
neets, is consistent with the D.C. Zoning Act, why don't you
just use the D.C. Zoning Act?

I nmean, why give them this separate ninble
process? | amespecially concerned about seeing just today,
for the first time, a building planned for Zone 15.

W were told as recently as January that there are
no plans to build anything there. And now!| see on the maps
presented to you, on the schematics presented, that a
bui I ding is indeed planned there.

While the ANC did endorse this, it was a split
vote. And there was concern by sone ANC nenbers. And while
t hey have done sone outreach, the first time the conmunity
heard about this plan was Cctober 28th of |ast year.

And it canme as quite a shock. What a surprise to
us that this apartnent buil ding was goi ng up. But again, as
| say, | amnot opposed to sick children. Thank you for your
time.

CHAI R HOOD: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Hansen. |If you
could just stay tuned, we may have sonme questions for you.
M. Dauber, | think, hopefully | pronounced your name. |If
not, you can correct ne.

DR. DAUBER: That's correct. So, thank you,
Commi ssioner. And thank you to the Coormittee for taking ny

testinmony. | ama resident of Shepherd Park. | live at the
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corner of 14th Street and Iris, which is just a few bl ocks
away fromthe entrance to the Walter Reed Canpus.

For full disclosure, | am also the Chief of
Endocrinology at Children's National. So, | ama physician,
and an enpl oyee at the hospital, as well as a researcher who
w || have research space at this new canpus.

| also have four grade school age children, who
ride their bicycles past, down 14th Street, past that busy
entrance, to get to school every day. So, I'm you know,
very thoughtful, | would say, and aware of the i npact of this

devel opment on the | ocal conmunity.

You know, | <can't speak know edgeably to the
plans. And I'Il let other nmenbers from Children's National
address those. | just wanted to convey to you the absol ute

i nportance of these devel opnents for Children's National.

And even understanding all the inpact on ny | ocal
community how inmportant it is. W are literally busting at
the seans. As the Chief of Endocrinology part of ny role is
to recruit researchers.

W, our group, does research on the devel opnent
of children with Type-1 di abetes, on genetic causes of growth
di sorders, on genetic problens related to sexual
di fferentiation.

These, there is extrenely limted space. | have

faculty nenbers who are not only sharing offices, but are
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literally sharing desks. And there are no |ab space to
recruit new researchers.
And our mission is to help the future children,

you know, both locally, but nationally and internationally

as well. And | just cannot stress enough how inportant this
devel opnent is for the future health of children all over the
wor | d.

And |'mal so very nuch | ooking forward to having
a |l ocal pediatrician office five blocks fromny house. That
w Il be very convenient.

And | do wunderstand, you know, the traffic
patterns, and the concerns for safety. And |I'm very glad
that Children's is conmtted to those nitigation strategies,

as | really worry, obviously, about ny children's health and
safety

So, that's all | wanted to say. | don't know,
"1l conmment very briefly. | don't know the specific plans
for that Zone 9. 1'Il let others speak to that.

But | will attest to the absolute inportance and
need for fam |y nenbers, as well as also visiting researcher
scientists to be able to have |ocal housing, which as you
know is extrenely difficult.

W have patients conming fromall over the region.
Oten, you know, frommany hours to cone see our specialists

on our team So, that's all | wanted to say. Thank you very
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much for your tine. And | urge you to support our
application. Thank you.
CHAI R HOOD: Thank you both. Let's see if we have

questions of either one. Conm ssioner May. Your canera's

off. So, | can't see you noddi ng your head. So --

COW SSI ONER MAY: | had to turn nmy canera off,
because ny conputer was flipping out.

CHAI R HOOD: Ch, okay.

COW SSI ONER  MAY: No, | do not have any
gquesti ons.

CHAI R HOOD: Ckay. G eat . Thank you.
Commi ssi oner Shapiro.

COW SSI ONER SHAPI RO | wanted to thank both
folks for their testinony, thoughtful testinony. But | don't

have any questions, M. Chair.
CHAI R HOOD: kay. Commi ssioner Turnbull.
COW SSI ONER TURNBULL: | woul d al so thank both

the witnesses for com ng down, or staying at hone. But |

have no questions, Chair, for either one.

CHAI R HOOD: Okay. Vice Chair Mller.

VICE CHAIR M LLER: Thank you, M. Chairnman, yes.
No questi ons. | thank each of the wtnesses for their
t esti nony.

CHAI R HOOD:  Ckay. | think Ms. Hansen, | think
i f you have a conversation with Ms. Kinlow and ot hers, not
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that they're going to resolve it. | think some of your
questions, | don't, like you said, | don't think you're in
total opposition.

| think there's sonme concerns. And | really
wasn't famliar with you said the D.C. Zoning Act. Maybe
you' re tal king about our reqgulations? | guess that's what
It was.

MS. HANSEN: Yes.

CHAI R HOOD: Ckay. Ckay. Al right. We
appreciate your testinony. But | think if you have, conti nue
to have conversations, and just talk, and because you're
definitely inpacted.

And we've so noted that you're going to be
i npacted, or there will be inpacts. I think key on Ms.
Batties and others is to try to see how we can mtigate it,
and fine tune it.

And M. Dauber, | really appreciate your comrents.
And 1'Il tell you why. Sone years ago | sat on a case with
t he Washi ngton Hospitals. And especially with what's going
on now, at that time they did not work in hospitals.

So, Washi ngton Hospitals seened to i ncrease. And
what | told them and the public were against it, and | still
stand true to that, is that you really don't really
understand until your |oved one or sonebody you know needs

their services, or need that room
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And especially wwth this pandem c, and, you know,
there's been a shortage of services, and people being able
to get the treatnent they need. So, for ne it's always
better to say nore than |ess.

And especi al | y Washi ngt on Hospital Center, | w sh
we coul d have done even nore at that tine. So, whenever it
cones and nake sure people, our residents, and people that
need to get care, I'mall for that.

So, | really appreciate your comments. And your
comment s took ne back to that case, which was sone years ago.
So, hopefully, M. Hansen, you can continue to have a
conversation. W wll, as we go, we're looking at it.

That's what this is all about, |ooking for
i npacts, especially to the surrounding area. So, with that,
anyt hing el se? Commi ssioners, any other comrents?

Ckay. Let me nove right along. And, ©Ms.
Schellin, I know you're still listening. Let nme see what |
have next. That's all we have --

VICE CHAIR M LLER: M. Chairman --

CHAI R HOCOD: Yes, Vice Chair.

VICE CHAIR M LLER  Just as a followup to, it's
probably nore appropriate for the next case. But since we're
going to incorporate by reference the record of both cases
together, just as a followup, on the WR-9 | odgi ng zone.

| wonder if you know, I'mnot sure | sawit in the
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record, the tenporary | odgi ng for, you know, visiting doctors
or famly of patients, what the maxi rumbuild out is on that
site for, if you know, the nunber of units, or the nunber of
peopl e?

| think they'll have the parking, nore than anple
parking that's being provided on the site for their cars, and
won't be parking in the nei ghborhood. But, do you know
what's the nunber of units? O maybe, M. Kinlow do you
know, or sonebody?

MS. BATTIES: Comm ssioner MIler, the zone. So,
there are no buil dings that have been designed, right. This
WR-9 zone allows for four story structure and of naximum
hei ght of 45 feet. And | don't see the density on here.

But it's a four story structure, 45 feet in
hei ght, maxi mum height, which is consistent wth the
residential devel opnent imediately east in the Parks at
Wal ter Reed.

VICE CHAIR MLLER And it's a relatively narrow
wi dth, narrow site in width. So, there's only so nuch that
could go there. And | --

M5. BATTIES: And it's about .6 acres.

VICE CHAIR M LLER  Ckay.

MS. BATTIES: So, it's a small site.

VICE CHAIR M LLER. Yes. (kay. Thank you very

nmuch.

NEAL R. GROSS
COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS
1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W.
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com




A WD

o O

~l

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

66
V5. BATTI ES: You' re wel cone.

CHAI R HOCD: Ckay. Thank you. | think this
concludes our case. I'mnot sure if we need anything. M.
Schellin, can you still hear ne?

M5. SCHELLIN: Yes, | can. | just can't, | | ost
ny i nternet down here because of the storm So, | cannot get

back on.

CHAIR HOOD: Ckay. So --

M5. SCHELLIN: But | can hear you.

CHAIR HOOD: Okay. So, | guess we can close this
case out, Ms. Schellin. Are there any dates, anything we
need to do? O we just need to nove to the next one?

MS. SCHELLIN: You can go ahead and nove to the
next one. And then we'll do dates for all, for both cases.

CHAI R HOOD: COkay. Ms. Batties, do you all need
five m nutes?

M5. BATTIES: Yes. W'I|Il take five m nutes.

CHAI R HOOD: Okay, good. Because |'m going to
take five m nutes anyway. Ckay.

MS. BATTIES: Okay.

CHAIR HOCOD: So, we'll be back in five m nutes.

(Wher eupon, the above-entitled matter went of f the
record at 5:32 p.m and resuned at 5:56 p.m)

CHAI R HOOD: You've heard the, we heard the case

presented to us and its rulemaking. | think this rule nerits
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our approval. And | would ask that sonebody nake a notion
besides ne. Vice Chair Mller.

VICE CHAIR M LLER M. Chai r man.

CHAI R HOOD:  Yes.

VICE CHAIR M LLER | had asked for a post hearing
subm ssion on 19-24, regarding nore explicit identification
of potential adverse inpacts, and potential elenents of the
Conmp Plan. | wll retract that.

They could do that before final action if they
want to. | don't think | personally, actually need that.
| think our Council in collaboration with us can nmake sure
that the order reflects appropriately.

So, | am pleased to nmake a notion to, if it's
appropriate, to take proposed action on Case nunber 19-24,
Children's National, text anendnent to Subtitle K at Wal ter
Reed, and ask for a second.

COW SSI ONER MAY:  Second.

CHAIR HOOD: Ckay. It's been noved and properly
second. Ms. Schellin, can we get a roll call vote, please?

MS. SCHELLIN: Yes, sir. Conm ssioner MIler.

VICE CHAIR M LLER  Yes.

MS. SCHELLIN: Commi ssi oner Shapiro.

COW SSI ONER SHAPI RO Yes.

M5. SCHELLIN:  Conm ssi oner Hood.

CHAI R HOOD:  Yes.
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M5. SCHELLIN.  Conmm ssi oner May.

COW SSI ONER MAY:  Yes.

M5. SCHELLIN: Comm ssioner Turnbull.

COW SSI ONER TURNBULL:  Yes.

MS. SCHELLIN. The vote is five, to zero, to zero
to approve proposed action in Zoning Conm ssion Case nunber
19- 24. W ask the Comm ssion, sorry, the applicant to
provide a draft findings of facts and conclusions of law in

this case by July 9th.

And we'll put this on the agenda for, well, we
cannot put it on the agenda for July 27th. It will actually
go on the agenda in Septenber. Qur first nmeeting is

Septenber 14th, for final action since the proposed
rul emaki ng has to be published.

Actually, | don't think | need a draft. Well, we
still need a draft order fromthem So, | need, we'll put
this on for 9/14 for final action.

CHAI R HOQOD: So, I'm | think we can get that
toget her. Because |'mthinking, |I'm seeing some heads nod.
So, | think I wuld ask |ead counsel to work with M.
Schellin and see what we actually need.

| think that we nay not need that. But let's just
see. W'll leave that open for you guys, |adies and
gentlenen, to figure that out. W appreciate that. Ckay.

So, | think this is it for this case. l'd |ike
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to close, let ne thank everyone for their participation. And
| would like to close 19-24. So, that's cl osed.
(Wher eupon, the above-entitled nmatter went of f t he

record at 5:59 p.m)
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